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FILED
(N CLRPtIc’S OFFICE

US, CiStFIiCr COURT E,D,N,Y.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW yo JUN 052014 *

LONG ISLAND OFFICE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)

Plaintiff, ) CIVIL ACTION NO._____

)
v. ) COMPLAINT FOR

) PERMANENT INJUNCTION
MIRA HEALTH PRODUCTS LTD., a corporation )
MICAEL S. RAGNO, an individual

— 3MICHAEL S. RAGNO, JR., an individual

SL4NCO, S.
Plaintiff, the United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, respectfully

represents to this Court as follows:

1. This statutory injunction proceeding is brought under the Federal Food, Drug, an

Cosmetic Act (the “Act”), 21 U.S.C. § 332(a), to enjoin and restrain Michael S. Rzgno and

Michael S. Ragno, Jr., individuals, and Mira Health Products Ltd., a corporation, from violating:

(a) 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(a), by introducing or delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered,

into interstate commerce articles of food (dietary supplements) that are adulterated within the

meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1); and (b) 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing articles of food

(dietary supplements) that Defendants hold for sale after shipmcnt in interstate commerce to

become adulterated within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(l).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and

1345.

3. Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (d).
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DEFENDANTS

4. Defendant Mira Health Products Ltd. (“Mira”) is a New York corporation that

manufactures, processes, packs, labels, holds, and distributes dietary supplements. Mira is

located at 65 E. Cannans Road, Farmingdalc, New York, within the jurisdiction of this Court.

5. Defendant Michael S. Ragno is Mira’s owner and Chief Operating Officer. Mr.

Ragno is the most responsible person at Mira. His duties include overseeing all manufacturing

operations, marketing, and training, and he performs these duties al 65 E. Carmans Road,

Farmingdale, New York, within the jurisdiction of this Court.

6. Defendant Michael S. Ragno, Jr. is Mira’s quality assurance/quality control

(“QA/QC”) manager. His responsibilities include overseeing: receipt of raw materials;

manufhcturing operations; and QMQC. Mr. Ragno, Jr. performs his duties at 65 S Camians

Road, Farmingdale, New York, within thejurisdietion of this Court.

7. Defendants have been engaged in manufacturing, processing, packing, preparing,

labeling, holding, and distributing products including, but not limited to, Bolasterol, Dym-sdrol,

Metha-drol, Super DMZ, Bolt: Fat Incinerator, Libigrow, Mojo Nights, Health Life Chemistry

By Purity First Vitamin C-500, Health Life Chemistry By Purity First Multi-Minerals, Green

Phactor Powder Greens, Simply Weight Loss Carbo-Block, and Simply Weight Loss Stabilizer

Fat Inhibitor. Defendants manufacture their products using components they receive in interstate

commerce. Defendants distribute their products in interstate commerce to locations outside the

state of New York, such as Georgia, North Carolina, and New Jersey.

DEFENDANTS MANUFACTURE AND
DISTRIBUTE ADULTERATED DIETARY SUPPLEMENTS

2
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S. The Act defines “dietary supplement” as “a product (other than tobacco) intended

to supplement the diet that bears or contains one or more of the following dietary ingredients: a

vitamin; a mineral; an herb or other botanical; an amino acid; a dietary substance for use by man

to supplement the diet by increasing the total dietary intake; or a concentrate, metabolite,

constituent, extract or combination of [any of the preceding ingredients.” 21 U.S.C. § 321(Th,

In addition, a dietary supplement must not be “represented for use as a conventional food or as a

sole item of a meal or the diet” and must be “labeled as a dietary supplement” j4 Dietary

supplements are deemed to be “food” under the Act, except for purposes of2l U.S.C. § 321(g)

and 350f, Id.

9. Defendants’ products are labeled as dietary supplements on their principal display

panels, as defined in 21 C.F.R. § 101.1. Furthermore, each of Defendants’ products contain at

least one of the dietary ingredients specified in 21 U.S.C. § 321(fl).

10. The Act requires dietary supplement manufacturers to operate in compliance with

the current good manufacturing practice requirements for dietary supplements (“Dietary

Supplement cOMP”). 21 U.S.C. § 342(g)). Manufacturing according to Dietary Supplement

cOMP means that the manufacturing process incorporates a set of controls in the design and

production processes to ensure a quality finished product Dietary supplements that are not

manufactured, prepared, packed, and held in conformance with Dietary Supplement eGMP are

deemed to be adulterated. 21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(l). The Dietary Supplement cOMP regulations

arc set forth at 21 C.F.R. Part Ill.

11. FDA’s July 9—17,2013 inspection of Defendants’ facility (the “July 2013

inspection”) establishes that the dietary supplements that Defendants distribute are adulterated

within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1), in that they were prepared, packed, and held in a
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manner that does not conform to Dietary Supplement cGMP. Defendants’ significant deviations

from Dietary Supplement cGMP, include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Failure to conduct at least one appropriate test or examination to veri& the

identity of a dietary ingredient prior to its use, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111 .75(a)(l)(i).

Specifically, Defendants do not conduct identity testing on any dietary ingredients prior to their

use in manufacturing dietary supplements;

b. Failure to qualit’ a supplier of a non-dietary component prior to using the

component to manufacture dietary supplements, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.75(a)(2)(ii).

Specifically, Defendants have not qualified any of their suppliers’ certificates of analyses by

confirming the results of such suppliers’ tests or examinations.

c. Failure to verify that a finished batch of dietary supplements meets

product specifications for identity, purity, strength, composition, and for limits on those types of

contaminants that may adulterate or that may lead to adulteration of the finished batch of dietary

supplement, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.75(c). Specifically, Defendants send finished

products for microbial testing, but they do not verify that their finished batches of dietary

supplements meet product specifications for identity, purity, strength, and composition.

d. Failure to include complete information relating to the production and

control of each batch in batch production records, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.255(b).

Specifically. Defendants failed to include the following information in the batch production

record for Mineral Complex: the pre-encapsulation checklist; information about the capsule used

in production; the pre-packing and labeling checklists; bottling count chart; documentation that

quality assurance approved the product label; documentation of final product sampling; and

documentation of final review by the QAJQC team.

4
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e. Failure to ensure that manufacturing, labeling, and holding operations

ensure the quality of the dietary supplements and that the dietary supplements are packaged and

labeled as specified in the master manufacturing record, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.105.

Specifically, Defendants’ quality control personnel did not review batch records for

completeness and accuracy prior to releasing certain finished dietary supplements, such as

Mineral Complex and Uriflow.

£ Failure to hold components, dietary supplements, packaging, and labels

under conditions that do not lead to their mix-up, contamination, or deterioration, as required by

21 C.F.R. § 111.455(c). Specifically, Defendants’ raw materials, in-process materials,

quarantined materiaLs, and finished products are not clearly identified.

HISTORY

12. Defendants have a history of violating the Act. Several of the Dietary

Supplement cGMP deviations observed during the July 2013 inspection (referenced in Paragraph

11 above) are the same as, or similar to, those observed by FDA during inspections of

Defendants’ facility between March 13-23, 2012, and between March 18-22,2013. For example,

during both the March 2013 and 2012 inspections, FDA documented that Defendants failed to

establish that their suppliers’ certificates of analyses were reliable by confirming the results of

their suppliers’ tests or examinations (similar to Paragraphs 11 (a)-(b) above). FDA also

documented Defendants’ failure to verify that finished batches of dietary supplements met

product specifications for identity, purity, strength, and composition (similar to Paragraph 11(c)

above) during the March 2013 inspection. FDA also documented Defendants’ failure to hold

components, dietary supplements, packaging, and labels under conditions that do not lead to their
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mix-up, contamination, or deterioration (similar to Paragraph 11(1) above) during the March

2013 inspection.

13. FDA has repeatedly warned Defendants about their ongoing Dietary Supplement

cOMP violations. At the close of the March 2013 inspection, FDA investigators issued a list of

Inspeetional Observations (“Form FDA-483”) to, and discussed each of the observed deviations

with, Defendants Michael S. Ragno and Michael S. Ragno, Jr. Defendants responded to FDA in

writing with promises to correct the Dietary Supplement cGMP violations. In addition, at the

close of the March 2012 inspection, FDA investigators issued a Form FDA-483 to Defendant

Michael S. Ragno. Defendants responded to FDA in writing with promises to correct the Dietary

Supplement eGMP violations. Although Defendants made some corrections in response to

FDA’s inspection observations, they either did not follow through on their attempts to correct or

failed to sustain the corrections they made, as shown by the ongoing, significant Dietary

Supplement cGMP violations observed during the July 2013 inspection of Defendants’ facility.

14. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiff believes that, unless restrained by this Court,

Defendants will continue to viojate the Act in the manner set forth above.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court:

I. Permanently restrain and enjoin, under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a), Defendants, and each

and all of their directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors,

assigns, and any and alL persons in active concert or participation with any of them, from doing

or causing to be done, any of the following acts:

A. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by distributing adulterated food (dietary

supplements) in interstate commerce; and
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B. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing food (dietary supplements) that

Defendants hold for sale after shipment interstate commerce to become adulterated;

II. Permanently restrain and enjoin, under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a), Defendants, and each

and all of their directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, and

assigns, and any and all persons in active concert or participation with any of them, from

manufacturing, processing, packing, labeling, holding, or distributing dietary supplements,

unless and until Defendants’ methods, facilities, and controls used to manufacture, process, pack,

label, and hold dietary supplements are established, operated, and administered in conformity

with Dietary Supplement cOMP and the Act, in a maimer that has been found acceptable by

FDA;

III. Order that FDA be authorized pursuant to this injunction to inspect Defendants’

place(s) of business and all records relating to the receipt, manufacture, processing, packing,

labeling, holding, and distribution of any dietary supplement to ensure continuing compliance

with the terms of the injunction, the costs of such inspections to be borne by Defendants at the

rates prevailing at the time the inspections are accomplished; and

IV. That Plaintiff be granted judgment for its costs herein, and that this Court grant

such other and further relief as it deems just and proper.

DATED this S%tday of ,20l4.

Respectfully submitted,

LOREflA E. LYNCH
United tates Attorney

By:________
Thomas A. McFarland
Assistant U.S. Attorney
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U.S. Attorney’s Office
610 Federal PLaza, 5th Floor
Central Islip, NY 11722-4454
Tel.: 631-715-7863
Fax: 631-715-7920

MICHAEL S. BLUME
Director

Melanie Singh /
Counsel
Consumer Protection Branch
Department of Justice, Civil Division
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
Tel.: (202) 616-9928
Fax: (202) 514-8742

Of Counsel:

WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ
General Counsel

ELIZABETH H. DICKINSON
Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Division

ANNAMARIE KEMPIC
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation

CHRISTOPHER A. FANELLI
Assistant Chief Counsel for Enforcement
United States Department of Health and
Human Services
Office of the General Counsel
Food and Drug Administration
10903 New Hampshire Avenue
WO 31-4581
Silver Spring, MD 20993
301-796-8559
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FiLED

IN CLERK’S OFFICE
U.S. DISTRICT COURT E.D.N.Y.

* JUN 05 2014 *
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FORTHEEASTERNDISTRICTOFNEWYORK LONG ISLAND OFFICE

* “V14 2549UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) ‘/

Plaintiff, : :. ) CIVIL ACTION NO.______
)

v ) CONSENT DECREE FOR
) PERMANENT INJUNCTION

MIRA HEALTH PRODUCTS LTD., )
a corporation, et a)., ) B [41fJ CO J.

Defendants. BROWN, M. 3.

Plaintiff, the United States of America, by and through its undersigned counsel, having

filed a Complaint For Permanent Injunction (the “Complaint”) against Mini Health Products

Ltd., a corporation, and Michael S. Ragno and Michael S. Ragno, Jr., individuals (collectively,

“Defendants’, and Defendants having appeared and consented to entry of this Decree without

contest, without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint, and before any testimony

has been taken, and the United States of America, having consented to this Decree;

• IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

I. This Court has jurisdictbn over the subject mailer and all parties to this action.

•
2. The Complaint states a cause of action against Defendants under the Federal

Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 301 Ct seq. (the “Act”).

3. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331 (a), by introducing

or delivering for introduction, and causing to be introduced or delivered for introduction, into

interstate commerce articles of drugs that are misbranded within the meaning of2l U.S.C.

§ 352(l) in that their labeling fails to bear adequate directions for use.

4. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing

drugs that Defendants hold for sale aftershipment in interstate commerce to become misbranded
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within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 352(00) in that their labeling fails to bear adequate directions

for use.

5. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(a) by introducing

or delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered, into interstate eommerce dietary

supplements, as defined by 21 U.S.C. § 321(ffl, that are adulterated within the móahing of 21

U.S.C. § 342(&(1) in that they have been prepared, packed, and held under conditions that do

not meet current good manufacturing practice regulations for dietary supplements (“Dietary

Supplement CGMP”). 21 C.F.R. Part ill.

6. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(k) by causing

dietary supplements that Defendants hold for sale after shipment in interstate commerce to

become adulterated within the meaning df2l U.S.C. § 342(g))..

7. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants represent to the Court that they are not

directly or indirectly engaged in manufacturing, processing, packing, labeling, holding, or

distributing any dietary supplement, any product labeled as such, or any drug. If Defendants

later intend to resume operations at 65 E. Carmans Road, Farmingdale, New York 11735; or any

other location, Defendants must first notify FDA in writing at least sixty (60) business days in

advance of resuming operations and must comply with paragraphs 8(A)-(G) and 8(1) of this

Decree. This notice shall identify the type(s) of dietary supplements Defendants intend to

manufacture, process, pack, label, hold and/or distribute, and the facility in which Defendants

intend to resume operations. Defendants shall notresumc operations until FDA has first

inspected Defendants’ facility and operations pursuant to paragraph 8(H), Defendants have paid

the costs of such inspection(s) pursuant to paragraph 8(1), and Defendants have received written

2
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notice from FDA, as required by paragraph 8(3), and then Defendants shall resume such dietary

supplement operations only to the extent authorized in FDA’s written notice.

8. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants and each and all of their directors, officers,

agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors and assigns, and any and all persons or

entities in active conceit or participation with any of them who have received actual notice of

this Decree by personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined under

21 U.S.C. § 332(a), and the inherent equitable authority of this Court, from directly or indirectly

manufacturing, processing, packing, labeling, holding, or distributing any dietary supplement,

any product labeled as such, or any drug at or from 65 E. Camians Road, Farmingdale, New

York 11735 (the “facility”), or at or form any other locatioft(s) at which Defendants, now or in

the future, directly or indirectly manilfaeture, prepare, process, package, pack, label, hold, and/or

distribute dietary supplements, any product labeled as such, or any drug unless and dntil:

A. Defendants have removed all claims from their product labels, labling,

websites owned or controlled by Defendants, and in any other media that cause that product to be

a drug within the meaning of the Act;

B. Defendants retain, at Defendants’ expense,an independent person or

persons (the “Labeling Expert”), who is without personal, financial (other than the consulting

agreement between the parties), or familial ties to Defendants and their families or affiliates, who

by reason of background, experience, education, and training is qualified to assess Defendants’

compliance with the Act, to review the claims Defendants make for each of their products on all

labels, labeling, and any internet websites owned or controllcd by Defendants. Defendants shall

notify FDA in writing of the identity and qualifications of the Labeling Expert as soon as they

retain such expert. At the conclusion of the Labeling Expert’s review, the Labeling Expert shall

3
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prepare a written report analyzing whether Defendants are operating in compliance with the Act

and in particular, certify’ whether Defendants have removed all claims from each of their product

labels, labeling, websites owned or controlled by Defendants, and in any other media that cause

any of Defendants’ products to be drugs within the meaning of the Act, 21 U S C § 321(g) The

report shall include the specific results of the Labeling Expert’s review, includLng references to

product names and regulations addressed in the process of conducting the review, The report

shall also include copies of all materials reviewed by the Labeling Expert. The Labeling Expert

shall submit this report concurrently to Defendants and FDA no later than ten (10) business days

after completing this review;

C. Defendants retain, at Defendants’ expense, an independent person or

persons (the “Dietary Supplement COMP Expert”), Who is without any personal or financial ties

(other than the retention agreement) to Defendants and/or their families, and who, by reason of

background, training, education, or experience, is qualified to inspect Defendants’ facility to

determine whether the facility, methods, processes, and controls are operated and administered in

conformity with Dietary Supplement CGMP, 21 C.F.R. Part Ill. Defendants shall notify FDA

in writing of the identity and qualifications of the Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert as soon as

they retain such expert;

D. The Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert performs a comprehensive

inspection of Defendants’ facility and the methods and controls used to manufacture, prepare,

pack, label, and hold dietary supplements, and certifies in writing lb FDA (I) that he or she has

inspected Defendants’ facility, methods, processes, and controls; and (2) whether Defendants’

operations are, in the Dietary Supplement COMP Expert’s opinion, compliant with this Deane,

the Act, and its implementing regulations. The Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert’s report of

4, -.



the inspection, which shall be submitted to FDA, shall include, but not be limited to, a

determination of whether Defendants have methods, processes, and controls to ensure that they:

(1) Maintain, clean, and sanitize, as necessary, all equipment; utensils,

and other contact surfaces used to manufacture, package, label, or hold components or dietary

supplements, as required by 21 CF R § 111 27(d),

- (2) Conduct at least one appropriate test or exination to verify the

identity of every component that is a dietary ingredient before using such components, as

required by 21 C.F.R. § Ill .75(a)(1)(i);

(3) Confirm the identity of every component that is not a dietary

ingredient and determine whether applicable component specifications are met before using such

components, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 11 l.75(a)(2);

Verify that finished batches of dietary supplements meet product

purity, strength, and -composition, asrequired by 21 C.F.R.specifications

§ 111.75(c);

information

111.255(b).

(5)’ InclUde in the batch production records complete

relating to the production and control of each batch, as required by 21 C.F.R. §

Pursuant to 21 C.F.L § 111.260, such information includes:

(i) The unique identifier assigned to each component,

packaging, and label used (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(d));

(ii) The identity and weight or measure of each component

used (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(e));

(iii) A statement of the actual yield and a statement of the

percentage of theoretical yield at appropriate phases of processing (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(0);

5 -
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(4)

for identity,
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(iv) Documentation, at the time of performance, of packaging

and labeling operations, including the unique identifier assigned to packaging and labels used (21

C.F.R. 1l1.260(k)(I));

(v) Documentation, at the time ofperfonnance, of packaging

and labeling operations, including an actual representative label, or a cross-reference to the

physical location of the actual or representative label specified in the master manufacturing

record (21 C.F.R. § 111 .260(k)(2));

(vi) Documentation, at the time of performance, that quality

control personnel approved and released, or rejected, the batch for distribution (21 C.F.R.

§ 11 1.260(l)(3));

(6) Maintain batch production records so that such records accurately

follow the appropriate master manufacturing record and demonstrate that each step of the batch

production record is perfónned, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.255(c);

(7) Hold components, dietary supplements, packaging, and labels

under conditions that do not lead to the mix-up, contamlnat!on, or deterioration of components,

dielary supplements, packaging, and labels, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.455(c);

(8) Conduct all required material reviews and make all required

disposition decisions, as required by 21 C.F.R: § 111.113(a); and

(9) Use equipment and utensils that are of appropriate design,

constructiOn, and workmanship to enable them to be suitablefor their intended use and to be

adequately cleaned and property maintained, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.27(a);

E. Defendants recall and destroy, under FDA’s supervision, all unexpired

drugs and dietary supplements manufactured, processed, packed, labeled, held, and/or distributed

6



Case 2:14-cv-03549-JFB-GRB Document 1-1 Filed 06/05/14. Page 7 of 19 PagelD #: 15

during the time period beginning August 1,2010 through and including the date of entry of this

Deêree. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and the costs of FDA’s supervision.

Defendants shall not dispose of any such products in a manner contrary to the provisions of the

Act, any other federal law, or the laws or any State or Territory, as defined in the Act, in which

the products are disposed; :
F. Should the Labeling Expert or Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert

(collectively, “Experts”) identify any deficiencies in their reports as described in paragraphs 6(8)

and 8(D):

(1) Defendants shall report to FDA and the Experts in writing the

actions they have taken to correct such deficiencies; and

(2) The Experts shall certify in writing to FDA whether, based upon

the Experts’ further review andfor inspections(s), Defendants’ facility and their methods,

processes, and eontrols used to manufacture, process, prepare, pack, label, hold, or distribute

their dietary supplements (and all products labeled as suah) and drugs appear to be in compliance

with the Act, its implementing regulations, and this Decree; and whether Defendants have

removed all claims from each of their product labels, labeling, websites owned or controlled by

Defendants, and in any other media that cause any of Defendants’ products to be drugs within

the meaning of the Act

G. Defendants certify in writing to FDA that none of their products intended

for human use, including, but not limited to, bodybuilding, sexual enhancement, and/or weight-

loss products, contain Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients, steroids, or steroid analogs;
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H. FDA representatives inspect Defendants’ facility to determine whether the

requirements of this Decree have been met and whether Defendants are operating in conformity

with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations; and

I. Defendants have reimbursed FDA for the costs of all FDA inspections,

investigations, supervision, analyses, examinations, and reviews that FDA deems necessary to

evaluate Defendants’ compliance with paragraph 8, at the rates set forth in paragraph 15 below;

J. FDA notifies Defendants in writing that they appear to be in compliance

with the requirements set forth in paragraphs 8(A)-CC) and (1) of this Decree. In no circumstance

shall FDA’s silence be construed as a substitute for written notification.

Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the individual Defendants from seeking and/or

obtaining employment at retail stores that sell dietary supplements, provided the individual

Defendants have no ownership interest in such retail stores or the dietary supplements sold

therein.

9. Within ten (10) business days after the entry of this Decree, Defendants, under

FDA’s supervision, shall destroy all dietary supplements, all products labeled as such, and all

drugs, including components of such articles, that are in Defendants’ possession, custody, or

control as of the date of entry of this Decree. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and

the costs of FDA’s supervision. Defendants shall not dispose of any such products in a manner

contrary to the provisions of the Act, any other federal law, or the Laws or any State or Territory,

as defined in the Act, mwhich the products are disposed.

10. Upon resuming operations after complying with the requirements of paragraph 8

and receiving FDA’s written notification pursuant to paragraph 8(J), Defendants shall retain an

independent person or persOns who shall meet the criteria described in paragraph 8(B) to conduct

8
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audit inspections of Defendants’ facility no less frequently than once every six (6) months for a

period of no less than five (5) years (hereinafter, the “Auditor”). The first audit shall occur not

more than six months after Defendants have received FDA’s written notification pursuant to

paragraph 8(J) If Defendants choose, the Auditor may be the same person or persons retained as

the Labeling Expert or Dietary Supplement COMP Expert described in paragraphs 8(B)-(C)

A.

At the odñclusion of dach audit inspedtion, the Auditor shall prepare a

detailed written audit report (“Audit Report”) analyzing whether Defendants are in compliance

with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations, and identifying any deviations from

such requirements (“Audit Report Observations”).

B. Each Audit Report shall contain a written certification that the Auditor:

(a) has persbnally reviewed all of Defendants’ produot labels, labeling, and websites; and

(b) personally certifies whether the product labels, labeling; and internet websites do not make

claims that cause Defendants’ products to be drugs within thà meaning of the Act.

C. As a part of every Audit Report, the Auditor shall assess the adequacy of

corrective actions taken by Defendants to correct all previous Audit Report Observations. The

Audit Reports shall be delivered contemporaneously to Defendants ahdFDA by courier srvice

or overnight delivery service, no later than ten (10) business days after the date the Audit

Inspection is completed. In addition, Defendants shall maintain the Audit Reports in separate

files at Defendants’ facility and shall promptly make the Audit Reports available to FDA upon

-
. request. .... .. .. - . . .. -

0. If an Audit Report contains any observations indicating that Defendants’

dietary supplements, products labeled as such, and/or drugs are not in äomplianee with this

beree, the Act, or its implemhting regulationi, Defendants shall, within fifteen (15) business

9
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days of receipt of the Audit Report, correct those observations, unless FDA notifies Defendants

that a shorter tune period is necessaiy If, after receiving the Audit Report, Defendants believe

that correction of the deviations will take longer than fifteen (15) busLness days Defendants

shall, within ten (10) business days of receipt of the Audit Report, submit to FDA in writing a

proposed schedule for completing corrections (“Audit Correction Schedule”) The Audit

Correction Schedule must be reviewed and approved by FDA in writing prior to implementation

by Defendants In no circumstance shall FDA’s silence be construed as a substitute for written

approval Defendants shall complete all corrections according to the approved Audit Correction

Schedule Immediately upon correction, Defendants shall submit documentation of their

corrections to the Auditor. Within twenty (20) business day of the Auditor’s receiptbf

Defendants’ documentation of corrections, unless FDA notifies Defendants that a shorter tLme

period is necessary, or within the time period provided in a correction schedule approved by

FDA, the Auditor shall review the actions taken by Defendants to correct the Audit Report

Observations Withm five (5) business days of beginning that review, the Auditor shall report in

writing to FDA whether each of the Audit Report Observations has been corrected and, if not,

which Audit Report Observations remain uncorrected

II Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants, and all of their directors, officers, agents,

• representatives, employees, attorneys, sUccessors and assigns, and any and all persons or entities

in active concert or participation with any of them, are permanently restrained and enjoined

under 21 U S C § 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing to be done any of the

following acts

• :
•. 10 •:
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A.’ Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by introducing or delivering, or causing to

be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are misbranded within the

meaning of2l USC § 352(0(1),

B Violating 21 U S C § 331Qc), by causing drugs that Defendants hold for

sale after shipment in interstate commerce to become misbranded within the meaning of

21 USC § 352(0(1),

C. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by introducing or delivering, or causing to

be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce food (dietary supplements) that is

adulterated within the meaning of2l U S C § 342(g)(1), and

D Violating 21 US C § 331(k), by causing food (dietary supplements) that

Defendants hold for sale after shipméntin interstate commerce to become adulterated within the

meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1). : ..

12. If, at any time after this Decree has been entered, FDA determines, based on the

results of an inspection, a review of Defendants’ products, product labels, labeling, or websites

owned or controlled by Defendants, a report prepared by Defendants’ Experts or the Auditor, or

any other information, that Defendants have failed to comply with any provision of this Decree,

have violated the Act or its implementing regulations, or that additional corrective actions are

necessary to achieve compliance with the Act, applicable regulations, and/or this Decree, FDA

may, as and when it deems necessary, notify Defendants in writing of the noncompliance and

order Defendants to take appropriate corrective action, including, but not limited to, ordering

Defendants to immediately take one or more of the following actions:
..

A. Cease manufacturing, processing,packing, labeling, holding, and/or

distributing any or all dietary supplements all products labeled as such, and/or all drugs,

11
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B. Recall, at Defendants’ expense, any dietary supplement, any product

labeled as such, and/or any drug that in FDA’s judgment is adulterated, misbranded, or otherwise

in violation of this Decree, the Act, or its implementing regulations;

C. Revise, modify, expand, or continue to submit any reports or plans

prepared pursuant to this Decree,

D. Submit additional reports or information to’ FDA as requested;

E. Issue a safety alert; and/or

F. Take any other corrective actions as FDA, in its discretion, deems

necessary to bring Defendants into compliance with this Decree, the Act, or its implementing

regulations.

This remedy shall be separate and apart from, and in addition to, any other remedy

available to thi United States under this Decree or under thelaw. :

13. Upon receipt of any order issued by’ FDA pursuant to paragraph 12, Defendants

shall immediately and fully comply with the terms of the order. Any cessation of operations or

other action described in paragraph 12 shall continue until Defendants receive written

notification from FDA that Defendants appear to be in compliance with this Decree, the Act, and

its implementing regulations, and that Defendants may resume operations. The cost of FDA

inspections, sampling, testing, travel time, and subsistence expenses to implement the remedies

set forth in paragraph 12 shall be borne by Defendants at the ratei specified in paragraph IS.

14 Representatives of FDA shall be permitted, without pnor notice and as and when

FDA deems necessary, to inspect Defendants’ places of business, and without prior notice, take

any other measures necessary to mOnitor and ensure continuing compliance with the terms of this

Decree. During inspeëtLons, FDA representatives shall be permitted to: have immediate access

12 . . . .. .
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to buildings, equipment, raw ingredients, in-process materials, finished products, containers,

packaging material, labeling, and other material therein; take photographs and make video

recordings; take samples of Defendants’ raw ingredients, in-process materials, finished products,

containers, pack’aginginaterial, labeling, and other material; and xamine and copy all records

relating to the manufacture, processing, packing, labeling, holding, and distribution of any and

all dietary supplements and their components. The inspctions shall be permitted upon

presentation of a copy of this Decree and appropriate credentials. The inspection authority

granted by this Decree is separate from, and in addition to, the authority to make inspections

under the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 374.

15. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for the costs of all FDA inspectiOns,

investigations, supervision, analyses,examinatiohs, and reviews that FDA deems necessary to

evaluate Defendants’ compliance with any part of this Decree at the standard rates prevailing at

the time the costs are incurred. As of the date of entry of this Decree, these rates are: $87.57 per

hour or fraction thereof per representative for inspeàtion and investigative work; $104.96 per

hour or fractionthereof per representative for analytical or review work; $0.565 per mile for

travel expenses by automobile; government rate or the equivalent for travel by air or other

means; and the published government per diem rate for subsistence expenses where necessary.

In the event that the standard rates applicable to FDA supervision of court-ordered compliance

are modified, these rates shall be increased or decreased without further order of the Court.

16. Within ten (10) business days after the date of Defendants’ notice to FDA as

described in paragraph 7, Defehdants shall post a copy of this Decree in a common area at

Defendants’ facility and at any other Ideation at which Defendants conduct business and shall

ensure that the Decree remains posted for as long as the Decree remains in effect

13
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17. Within ten (10) business days after the entry of this Decree, Defendants shall

provide a copy of the Decree by personal service or certified mail (return receipt requested) to

each and all of their directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors

and assigns, and any and all persons or entities in active concert or partiöipation with any of them

(“Associated Persons”) Within twenty (20) business days after the date of entry of this Decree,

Defendants shall provide to FDA an affidavit stating the fact and manner of their compliance

with this paragraph, identifying the names, addresses, and positions of all persons who have

received a copy of this Decree.

18. In the event that any of the Defendants becomes associated with any additional

Associated Person(s) at any time after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall within ten (10)

business days after the commencement of such association: (a) provide a copy of this Decree, by

personal service or certified mail (restricted delivery, return receipt requested), to such

Associated Person(s); and (b) provide to FDA an affidavit stating the fact and manner of

complianöe with this paragraph, identifying the names, addresses, and positions of all Associated

Persons who received a copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph.

19. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing at least fifteen (15) business days before

any change in ownership, name, or character of their business that occurs after entry of this

Decree, including an incorporation, reorganization, creation of a subsidiary, relocation,

dissolution, bankruptcy, assignment, sale, or any other change in the structure or identity of Mira

Health Products Ltd., or the sale or assignment of any business assets, such as buildings,

equipment, or inventory that may affect obligations arising out of this Decree. Defendants shall

provide a copy of this Decree to any prospective successor or assign at least twenty (20) business

days prior to any sale or assignment. Defendants shall furnish FDA with an affidavit of

14
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compliance with this paragraph no later than ten (10) business days prior to such assignment or

change in ownership.

20. All notifications, correspondence, and communications to FDA required by the

terms of this Decree shall be addressed to the District Director, New York District Office, 158-

15 Liberty Avenue, Jamaica, New York, 11433.

21. Should Defendants fail to comply with any provision of this Decree, the Act, or

its implementing regulations, including any time frame imposed by this Decree, then Defendants

shall pay to the United States of America: five thousand dollars ($5,000) in liquidated damages

for each day such violation continues; an additional sum of one thousand five hundred dollars

($1,500) in liquidated damages per day, per violation for each violation of this Decree, the Act,

and/or its implementing regulations; and an additional sum in liquidated damages equal to twice

the retail value of any distributed dietary supplements that are adulterated or otherwise in

violation of this Debree, the Act, or its implementing regulations. The remedy in this paragraph

shall be in addition to any other remedies available to the United States under this Decree, any

other Decree to which Defendants are subject, or the law.

22. Should the United States bring and prevail in a contempt action to enforce the

terms of this Decree, Defendants shall, in addition to other remedies, reimburse the United Stacs

for its attorneys’ fees (including overhead), investigational and analytical expenses, expert

witness fees, and court costs relating to such contempt proceedings.

23. Defendants shall abide by the decisions of FDA, and FDA’s decisions shall be

final. All decisions conferred upon FDA ‘in this Decree shall be vested in FDA’s discretion and,

if contested, shall be reviewed by this Court under the arbitrary and capricious standard set forth

in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Review by the Court of any FDA decision rendered pursuant to this

15
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Decree shall be based exclusively on the written record before FDA at the time the decision was

made. No discovery shall be taken by either party.

24. No sooner than five (5) years after satising the ob[igations of paragraphs 8(A)-

(0) and (I) and receiving written notification from FDA pursuant to paragraih 8(J) of this

Decree, Defendants may petition this Court for an order to dissolve this Decree. If Defendants

have maintained, to FDA’s satisfaction, a state of continuous compliance with this Decree, the

Act, and all applicable regulations during the five (5) years preceding Defendants’ petition, the

United States will not oppose such petition.

25. This Court retains jurisdiction over this action and the parties thereto for the

purpose of enforcing and modiing this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional

relief as may be necessary or appropriate

SO ORDERED, this day of .. . ,2014.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

16
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Entry consented to:

For Defendants For Plaintiff

MICHAEL S. RAG LOREflA E. LYNCH
Individually andon behalf of United States Attorney
Mira Health Products Ltd., as its Owner
and Chief Executive Officer

MICHAEL SI(A&SO, JR. [ATIORNEY NAMEI
Individually and on behalf of Assistant United States Attorney
Mica Health Products Ltd., as its
Quality Assurance/Quality Control

CHARD CO L MELANIE T. SW$GH
Collins, McDonald & Gann, P.C. Trial Attorney
Attorney for Defendants Consumer Protection Branch

Department of Justice
Civil Division
Washington, D.C. 20044

OF COUNSEL:

WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ
General Counsel

ELIZABETH H. DICKINSON
Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Division

ANNAMARIE KEMPIC
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation
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